
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 5 Mawrth 2020 

Amser: 09.15

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Llinos Madeley 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddPPIA@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat  

(09.15 - 09.30) 

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(09.30)   

 

2 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol - sesiwn dystiolaeth 5 

(09.30 - 10.20) (Tudalennau 1 - 23)  

 

Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 

Cymru   

Sharon Davies, Pennaeth Dysgu, Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Torfaen ac yn 

cynrychioli Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru 

Nick Williams, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg, Cyngor Dinas a Sir Abertawe ac yn 

cynrychioli Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru 

David Hopkins, Pennaeth Addysg Dros Dro - Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 

Cymru 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff Ymchwil 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 1 - Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru a 

Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl  

(10.20 - 10.30) 

 

3 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol - sesiwn dystiolaeth 6 

(10.30 - 11.20) (Tudalennau 24 - 32)  

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

Y Samariaid a Mind Cymru 

Sarah Stone, Cyfarwyddwr Gweithredol Cymru, y Samariaid 

Liz Williams, Swyddog Polisi a Chyfathrebu, y Samariaid 

Dr Ian Johnson, Rheolwr, Iechyd Meddwl Plant a Phobl Ifanc - Mind Cymru 

 

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 2 - Y Samariaid 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 3 - Mind Cymru 

 

4 Papur i’w nodi 

(11.20)   

 

4.1 Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar ein gwaith craffu ar 

gyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2020-21 

 (Tudalennau 33 - 55)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur i'w nodi 1 (Saesneg yn unig) 

 

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(ix) i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod 

(11.20)   

 

6 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol – trafod y dystiolaeth 

(11.20 - 11.30)   

 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



2 

INTRODUCTION 
1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities

in Wales. The three national park authorities and the three fire and rescue authorities
are associate members.

2. It seeks to provide representation to local authorities within an emerging policy
framework that satisfies priorities of our members and delivers a broad range of services
that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they serve.

3. The WLGA is pleased to be able to respond to the National Assembly for Wales (NAfW)
Children, Young People and Education Committee inquiry into the range of Education
Otherwise than at School (EOTAS) provision,  including Pupil Referral Units.  This
response has been informed by the knowledge and expertise of the Association of the
Directors of Education in Wales (ADEW).  As such this is a joint consultation response
on behalf of the WLGA and ADEW and represents the collective views of the 22 local
authorities in Wales.

4. Ensure direct communication between Welsh Government (WG), Estyn and Units Pupil
Referral (PRUs) has been influential in informing policy and informing policy makers
around issues including eduacation other than at school (EOTAS) Review, grant
funding, curriculum and the additional learning needs (ALN) reform. A key outcome of
the work of the group has been the sharing of excellent practice.  As a direct result,
members of the group have run several conferences for PRU staff across Wales in the
last year with regional consortia, local authorities (LAs), WG and Estyn’s support and
involvement, which have had a positive impact on enhancing the skills and knowledge
of staff working in the sector, in addition to supporting issues such as well-being and
staff morale.

Key areas of discussion during meetings:
• The implementation of the Curriculum for Wales 2020
• ALN reform, staff and learner wellbeing
• Improving outcomes for learners who are EOTAS through improved staff

training and development, assessment and tracking linked to the progress of
pupils in EOTAS provision and outreach support for hard to reach learners

• inspection of EOTAS provision
• The changing cohort of learners accessing specialist provision.
• Registration processes for EOTAS learners
• PRU Management Committees, the new Management Committee Handbook

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru        National Assembly for Wales  
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg       Children, Young People and Education Committee 
Ymchwiliad i Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol   Inquiry into Education Otherwise than at School 
EOTAS 30       EOTAS 30
Ymateb gan: Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr    Response from: Association of Directors of  
Addysg Cymru a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth    Education and Welsh Local Government
Leol Cymru    Association
_____________________________________ _________________________________________

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 1

Tudalen y pecyn 21



Key Outcomes: 
• Improved recognition of PRUs by WG at strategic level and policy level - this

has resulted in specific recognition of the sector in planning for the new
curriculum, in the implementation of the ALN Reform Act and in the devolving
of grant monies for pupils. the agenda alongside schools where appropriate.
PRU Headteachers now sit on the Estyn Headteacher Reference Group,
Estyn National Stakeholders Group and the WG EOTAS Advisory Group.
This will ensure that there is appropriate representation at all levels to inform
policy and practice in relation to EOTAS provision moving forward

• Improved trend in standards identified through Estyn inspections in the last 18
months.

• Improved communication within and across the sector
• Improved collaboration and partnership work within and across the sector - a

number of Headteachers within the group have visited other PRUs in Wales
and some in England to observe good practice.  Collaboration, sharing of
practice and some pooling of financial resources have taken place to enable
PRUs to provide appropriate training and development for staff.

• WG and Estyn have been an integral part of the group, sharing updates with
their colleagues in WG and Estyn.  Both have made sure that Pupil Referral
Units are on

• Bespoke and targeted training through joint conferences led by the sector, for
the sector

Key issues and Concerns
• Impact of the implementation of the ALN Reform Act including potential impact

of individual development plans (IDPs) moving from school responsibility to LA
responsibility when a pupil transitions to the EOTAS sector. The concern is
that this could be an incentive to exclude pupils or refer to EOTAS provision

• Impact of rising trend of pupils with extremely high levels of need and
demonstrating high levels of aggressive and violent behaviour in the sector

• Impact of rising numbers of pupils with ASD diagnosis and average to above
average cognitive ability who do not fit conventional special school provision
criteria being referred to the sector

• Whilst it has been applauded that Estyn now have a representative from the
sector on their stakeholder group, there were concerns that this was only 1
person from across the whole of Wales.

• Lack of representation from the sector in shaping the new curriculum
• Concerns re the potential impact of changes to the registration of pupils who

are EOTAS and the implications for the management of data/funding/joint
working

• Concerns about the validity and accuracy of benchmarking due to the range of
provision and differences in Local Authority policy, protocols and provision

• Whilst there have been significant improvements in ensuring pupils who are
EOTAS and staff who work within the sector are not disadvantaged by funding
arrangements, there are still issues with PRUs being overlooked. For
example, the funding for the professional learning grant was awarded much

Tudalen y pecyn 22



WLGA & ADEW Response to CYP&E Committee (EOTAS) 
 26.02.20 

4 

too late in the financial year in 2019/20, the period poverty grant did not cover 
pupils in EOTAS provision etc. 

• Recruitment of high quality staff to the profession is a challenge. There is little
or no opportunity for professional development in the sector at ITT or as an
NQT and staff working in the sector are unable to participate on the GDP to
qualify as a teacher while they work.

Tudalen y pecyn 23

mailto:david.hopkins@wlga.gov.uk


Mae Samariaid Cymru’n croesawu’r ymchwiliad hwn i Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol. 
Diben y Samariaid yw lleihau nifer y bobl sy’n marw trwy hunanladdiad. Er bod 
achosion hunanladdiad yn gymhleth, mae llawer o ffactorau risg sy’n cynyddu risg 
syniadaeth hunanladdol a hunanladdiad a gwblhawyd, a grwpiau risg uchel y 
mae’r ffactorau risg hyn yn fwy tebygol o effeithio arnynt. Rydyn ni yn Samariaid 
Cymru’n credu bod yn rhaid i waith effeithiol i atal hunanladdiad gael ei seilio ar 
atal ac ymyrraeth gynnar er mwyn inni leihau nifer y bobl sy’n cyrraedd pwynt 
argyfwng ar ben arall y raddfa. Rhaid inni wreiddio ymagwedd iechyd cyhoeddus 
at hunanladdiad, trwy ganolbwyntio’n bennaf ar atal yn hytrach na gwella yn unig. 
Gall buddsoddi mewn atal ac ymyrraeth gynnar leihau costau dynol, cymdeithasol 
ac economaidd. Yng Nghymru, mae hunanladdiad yn fater o bwys ym maes 
iechyd y cyhoedd ond, yn arwyddocaol, mae hefyd yn fater o bwys ym maes 
anghydraddoldeb.  

Rydyn ni yn Samariaid Cymru’n canolbwyntio ar nifer o feysydd polisi â 
blaenoriaeth uchel, gan gynnwys plant a phobl ifanc. Hunanladdiad yw achos 
mwyaf marwolaeth ymysg pobl ifanc (15-24 oed) yn y Deyrnas Unedig. Yn y 
Deyrnas Unedig, cododd cyfraddau hunanladdiad ymysg pob grŵp o bobl ifanc 
yn 2018. (15-19 / 20-24 / 25-29) - roedd cyfraddau hunanladdiad ymysg dynion 20-
24 oed wedi bod yn gostwng, ond eleni gwelwyd cynnydd arwyddocaol, sef 30%. 

Yng Nghymru, ar sail ffigurau’r Swyddfa Ystadegau Gwladol (ONS) ar gyfer Cymru, 
ar hyn o bryd mae cyfraddau hunanladdiad ar gyfer pobl ifanc 10-24 oed (ar sail 
cyfanredau tair blynedd) ar eu mwyaf ers 2003-2005. (Gweler Atodiad 1 - 
Cyfraddau hunanladdiad wedi’u safoni yn ôl oedran ar gyfer grwpiau oedran 
bras (gyda chyfyngau hyder 95%): personau, cofrestriadau Cymru 1981 – 2017) 

Ochr yn ochr â’n gwaith ar anfantais economaidd gymdeithasol ac ymddygiad 
hunanladdol, ym mis Awst 2019 lansiasom adroddiad polisi newydd ar wahardd 
unigolion o addysg (Gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yng Nghymru: y gost gudd). 
Yn dilyn seminar yn 2019, y daeth cynrychiolwyr o ysgolion, llywodraeth leol, y 
gwasanaeth iechyd, sefydliadau yn y trydydd sector, prifysgolion a Chomisiynwyr 
Cymru iddo, lansiasom yr adroddiad hwn er mwyn mynd i’r afael â risg 
hunanladdiad ymysg pobl ifanc sydd wedi cael eu gwahardd o ysgolion yng 
Nghymru.  

Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 
Ymchwiliad i Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol 
EOTAS 05 
Ymateb gan: Samariaid Cymru 
____________________________________ 

National Assembly for Wales 
Children, Young People and Education Committee 
Inquiry into Education Otherwise than at School 
EOTAS 05 
Response from: Samaritans Cymru 
___________________________________________ 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 2

Tudalen y pecyn 24

Eitem 3



O gofio’r cysylltiad cryf rhwng Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol a gwahardd unigolion o 
ysgolion a symudiadau wedi’u rheoli, hoffem dynnu sylw at Gwahardd unigolion o 
ysgolion yng Nghymru: y gost gudd ac argymell bod y pwyllgor yn edrych ar yr 
adroddiad (PDF 1.1 MB). 

Yn aml cydnabyddir mai pobl ifanc sydd mewn Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol, yn 
arbennig Unedau Cyfeirio Disgyblion, yw’r dysgwyr mwyaf agored i niwed. Mae 
darpariaeth Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol yn aml yn ganlyniad i wahardd unigolion o 
addysg a chanfu ein hadroddiad bod y plant a’r bobl ifanc oedd wedi cael eu 
gwahardd eisoes yn wynebu nifer o anghydraddoldebau. 

Mae gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn llawer mwy na gweithred tynnu plentyn o’r 
ysgol. Mae gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn gysylltiedig â set lawer ehangach o 
anghydraddoldebau, amgylchiadau a chanlyniadau sy’n codi dro ar ôl tro, gan 
gynnwys anfantais economaidd gymdeithasol, unigedd ac arwahaniad 
cymdeithasol, iechyd meddwl gwael, cysylltiad â’r system cyfiawnder troseddol ac 
Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (ADY). 

• Gall gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion arwain at unigedd ac arwahaniad 
cymdeithasol. Gwyddom fod hyn yn gysylltiedig â diffyg ymdeimlad o 
berthyn i blant a phobl ifanc. Hwn yw’r angen emosiynol dynol i gael ein 
derbyn fel aelod o grŵp neu gymuned.1 Gall unigedd ac arwahaniad gael 
effaith ddifrifol ar iechyd corfforol ac iechyd meddwl ac maent yn ffactor 
risg ar gyfer ymddygiad hunanladdol a hunanladdiad2; unigedd ac 
arwahaniad yw’r pryder mwyaf cyffredin ond un a fynegir mewn cysylltiadau 
oddi wrth wrywod, a’r mwyaf cyffredin ond tri oddi wrth fenywod, ar ein 
llinell gymorth ar draws y Deyrnas Unedig a Gweriniaeth Iwerddon.  
 

• Mae ymchwil yn dangos bod gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn fwy 
cyffredin ymysg bechgyn, disgyblion ysgolion uwchradd a’r rheiny sy’n byw 
mewn amddifadedd economaidd gymdeithasol. Roedd iechyd cyffredinol 
gwael ac anabledd dysgu ymysg plant ac iechyd meddwl gwael rhieni 
hefyd yn gysylltiedig â gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion. oedd lefelau uchel 
cyson o drallod seicolegol ymysg y rheiny oedd wedi cael eu gwahardd ar y 
llinell sylfaen ac yn y gwaith dilynol.3 
 

 
1 (2017) Marw o Anghydraddoldeb: Adroddiad Cryno, Samariaid   
2 Stravynski A, Boyer R. Loneliness in relation to suicide ideation and parasuicide: a population-wide study. Suicide Life 
Threat Behav. 2001;31(1):32-40.   
3 Ford, TJ; Parker, C; Salim, J; et al, The Relationship between Exclusion from School and Mental Health: A Secondary 
Analysis of The British Child and Adolescent Mental Health Surveys 2004 & 2007, Prifysgol Caerwysg, 2017   

Tudalen y pecyn 25

https://www.samaritans.org/documents/387/Samaritans_Cymru__Gwahardd_unigolion_o_ysgolion_yng_Nghymru_-_Y_gost_gudd.pdf


• Ar sail arolygon yn ystod chwe arolygiad gan y Prif Arolygydd Carchardai ar 
gyfer Cymru a Lloegr yn 2017/18, roedd 89% o’r plant yn dweud iddynt gael 
eu gwahardd o’r ysgol cyn dod i’r ddalfa, soniodd 74% am driwantiaeth 
flaenorol a dywedodd 41% mai 14 oed neu iau oeddent pan aethant i’r ysgol 
ddiwethaf. 4 
 

• Canfu astudiaeth fawr yn y Deyrnas Unedig ar wahardd unigolion o ysgolion 
fod gwahardd yn fwy cyffredin ymysg plant o statws economaidd 
gymdeithasol is, bechgyn a’r rheiny ag anawsterau iaith, cyrhaeddiad 
addysgol is neu anghenion addysgol arbennig. Roedd nodweddion y teulu, 
fel iechyd meddwl gwael ac ymgysylltiad gwael ag addysg ymysg y rhieni, 
hefyd yn rhagfynegi gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion. Canfu hefyd fod plant a 
gafodd eu gwahardd wedi hynny’n fwy tebyg o fod â chyflwr iechyd 
meddwl sy’n amharu’n glinigol neu broblem cyfathrebu cymdeithasol, yn 
ogystal ag ymwneud â bwlio fel cyflawnydd neu ddioddefwr, a pherthynas 
wael rhwng athrawon a disgyblion.5 
 

• Yn yr Adolygiad thematig o farwolaethau plant a phobl ifanc drwy 
hunanladdiad tebygol ar gyfer Cymru yn 2014, canfu’r adolygiad naratif nad 
oedd llawer ohonynt mewn addysg, cyflogaeth na hyfforddiant (NEET) pan 
fuont farw ac o’r herwydd ychydig o gymorth oddi wrth wasanaethau, neu 
ddim o gwbl, yr oeddent wedi’i gael. Nododd hefyd fod gan lawer ohonynt 
anghenion addysgol penodol neu gyflawniad addysgol cyfyngedig.6 
 

Nododd ein trafodaeth ford gron a ddarparodd wybodaeth ar gyfer Gwahardd 
unigolion o ysgolion yng Nghymru: y gost gudd, fod disgyblion ag Anghenion 
Dysgu Ychwanegol (ADY) yn profi cyfraddau gwahardd uchel o gymharu â’u 
cyfoedion ac wedi’u gorgynrychioli’n sylweddol yn y cyfraddau yng Nghymru. Mae 
ADY gan oddeutu un o bob pum dysgwr mewn ysgolion a gynhelir yng Nghymru.7 
 
Nododd y bobl oedd yn cymryd rhan y gall fod diffyg sylweddol dealltwriaeth ac 
ymwybyddiaeth o ddisgyblion ag ADY mewn ysgolion ac unedau cyfeirio 
disgyblion, a all arwain at ganlyniadau gan gynnwys gwaharddiadau oherwydd na 

 
4 (2018) HM Chief Inspector of Prisons annual report: 2017-18, Y Weinyddiaeth Cyfiawnder ac Arolygiaeth Carchardai Ei 
Mawrhydi,   
5 (2017) Ford, TJ; Paget, A; Parker, C; et al, Which children and young people are excluded from school? Findings from a 
large British birth cohort study, the Avon Longitudinal Study of Parents and Children (ALSPAC), Prifysgol Caerwysg   
6 John, A; Heatman, B; Humphreys, C; Price, L Adolygiad thematig o farwolaethau plant a phobl ifanc drwy 
hunanladdiad tebygol 2006-2012, Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Iechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru, 2014   
7 (2016) Dauncey, M Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol (ADY) yng Nghymru: Briff ymchwil, Gwasanaeth Ymchwil Cynulliad 
Cenedlaethol Cymru   

Tudalen y pecyn 26



all staff ddelio mewn modd digonol â disgyblion sy’n arddangos ymddygiad heriol 
neu anodd. Trafododd y bobl oedd yn cymryd rhan sut y dylid bob amser ystyried 
ymddygiad disgyblion ag ADY yn ganlyniad i’r cymorth maent yn ei gael - neu, yn 
hollbwysig, nad ydynt yn ei gael. Yn y drafodaeth hon codwyd pryder sylweddol 
hefyd ynghylch plant a phobl ifanc sydd ‘ar y ffin’ - mae rhai nad ydynt wedi cael 
diagnosis neu ddynodiad o ADY eto ac felly mae eu dyfodol yn aneglur gyda set o 
ganlyniadau a all gynnwys cael eu gwahardd.  
 
Dywedodd y bobl oedd yn cymryd rhan sy’n gweithio yn y sector ADY mai 
anhwylder diffyg canolbwyntio ac anhwylder diffyg canolbwyntio a 
gorfywiogrwydd sy’n fwyaf cyffredin ymysg y rheiny â phroblemau ymddygiad. 
Teimlwyd mai’r anhwylderau hyn sydd i gyfrif am y brif garfan o ddisgyblion sy’n 
tueddu i fod heb ddiagnosis. Fodd bynnag, nodwyd hefyd yn y drafodaeth hon fod 
cyllid yn tueddu i fynd at asesiadau a diagnosis yn hytrach na chymorth, yn 
arbennig ar lefel y gymuned. Nododd staff addysgu fod ADY gan 50% o'r dysgwyr 
mewn rhai ystafelloedd dosbarth ac o ganlyniad nid rhoi blaenoriaeth i ddiagnosis 
yw’r ymagwedd iawn. Teimlwyd bod diagnosis ar ei ben ei hun, heb arwain at 
gymorth effeithiol, o werth cyfyngedig i’r plentyn neu berson ifanc. 
 
Un nodwedd amlycach o’r drafodaeth hon oedd diffyg tebygol cyfleoedd i’r rheiny 
sydd ag ADY. Dywedodd sefydliadau fod angen cymorth cadarnhaol i bolisïau a 
chamau gweithredu cynhwysol er mwyn lleihau gwaharddiadau. 
 
Rydym yn annog y pwyllgor i ystyried yr argymhellion yn Gwahardd unigolion o 
ysgolion yng Nghymru: y gost gudd, yn arbennig y cyntaf sy’n canolbwyntio ar 
brofiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod. Rydym yn credu bod gan yr agenda 
profiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod yng Nghymru lawer o botensial i gryfhau 
gwaith atal hunanladdiad yng Nghymru, ond mae angen i ni weithredu ag un llais 
a sicrhau y caiff gweledigaeth yr agenda ei throi’n gamau gweithredu. 

Argymhelliad 1: Rhaid inni gydnabod a hybu dealltwriaeth o’r cysylltiad 
uniongyrchol rhwng gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion, anghydraddoldeb a 
phrofiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod 
 
Mae gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn fater o bwys o ran anghydraddoldeb. 
Fel y dengys yr adroddiad hwn, mae plant a phobl ifanc yn fwy tebygol o gael 
eu gwahardd o ysgolion os ydynt yn profi anghydraddoldebau cymdeithasol 
fel tlodi, anabledd a/neu brofiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod. Yn aml, 
effeithiau niweidiol gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yw’r un ffactorau sy’n 
rhagfynegi gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn y lle cyntaf, ynghyd ag unigedd 
ac arwahaniad cymdeithasol, risg digartrefedd a dirywiad mewn iechyd 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



meddwl. Felly yn aml mae gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yn rhan o gylch 
hunanbarhaol lle mae anghydraddoldeb yn ymsefydlu. 

 
Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru, arweinwyr a staff addysg, y sector iechyd a gofal 
cymdeithasol ac asiantaethau cymorth ehangach gydnabod y cysylltiad 
hwn rhwng gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion ac anghydraddoldeb. Er mwyn 
datblygu ffyrdd o fynd i’r afael â gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion a’i leihau, 
rhaid inni ddeall pa mor gyffredin yw gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion, 
cymhlethdodau ei achosion, y dulliau a ddefnyddir i wahardd unigolion a’i 
effaith ar bobl ifanc unigol a’r dyheadau polisi ehangach i Gymru 

Mae cysylltiad mawr rhwng gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion ac anfantais. Mae 
mynd i’r afael â hyn hefyd yn cynnig cyfle i ymyrryd yn y cylch o brofiadau 
niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod. Dylai osgoi gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion gael ei 
ystyried yn rhan o uchelgais ehangach i ymyrryd mewn cylchoedd o anfantais ar 
adeg ffurfiannol ym mywyd person ifanc. Gall ymyrryd i leihau profiadau niweidiol 
yn ystod plentyndod gael effaith fawr ar iechyd, tlodi ac allgau yng Nghymru a 
rhaid iddo gael ei ddatblygu a’i hyrwyddo trwy ymwybyddiaeth ymysg y cyhoedd 
a gweithwyr proffesiynol. Rhaid i ysgolion, gwasanaethau iechyd lleol, 
awdurdodau lleol, gwasanaethau cyhoeddus a’r sector cyhoeddus ehangach 
fuddsoddi a gweithio i leihau profiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod a’u heffaith 
ar unigolion ac, yn fwyaf arwyddocaol, deall buddion ymyrryd yn y cylch o 
brofiadau niweidiol yn ystod plentyndod.8 

 

 

 
8 Gwahardd unigolion o ysgolion yng Nghymru: y gost gudd / Samariaid Cymru (2019) 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



A
N

N
EX

 1
:  

A
ge

-s
pe

ci
fic

 s
ui

ci
de

 ra
te

s 
fo

r b
ro

ad
 a

ge
 g

ro
up

s 
(w

ith
 9

5%
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
te

rv
al

s)
: p

er
so

ns
, W

al
es

, 1
98

1 
to

 2
01

7 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

ns
 1,

2,
3,

4,
5,

6

Pe
rio

d
D

ea
th

s
R

at
e

LC
L

U
C

L
D

ea
th

s
R

at
e

LC
L

U
C

L
D

ea
th

s
R

at
e

LC
L

U
C

L
D

ea
th

s
R

at
e

LC
L

U
C

L
D

ea
th

s
R

at
e

LC
L

U
C

L

19
81

-1
98

3
90

4.
6

3.
7

5.
6

24
4

11
.4

9.
9

12
.8

36
8

19
.1

17
.2

21
.1

15
2

18
.9

15
.9

21
.9

78
15

.1
11

.9
18

.8
19

82
-1

98
4

95
4.

8
3.

9
5.

9
27

2
12

.6
11

.1
14

.1
36

6
19

.0
17

.1
21

.0
15

4
19

.4
16

.4
22

.5
78

14
.7

11
.6

18
.3

19
83

-1
98

5
90

4.
6

3.
7

5.
7

25
3

11
.6

10
.2

13
.1

35
6

18
.6

16
.6

20
.5

12
9

16
.4

13
.5

19
.2

81
14

.9
11

.8
18

.5
19

84
-1

98
6

85
4.

5
3.

6
5.

5
26

8
12

.2
10

.7
13

.6
36

4
19

.1
17

.1
21

.0
12

2
15

.3
12

.6
18

.1
76

13
.6

10
.7

17
.1

19
85

-1
98

7
98

5.
2

4.
3

6.
4

27
8

12
.4

11
.0

13
.9

35
0

18
.5

16
.6

20
.4

12
4

15
.3

12
.6

18
.0

84
14

.7
11

.8
18

.2
19

86
-1

98
8

10
8

5.
9

4.
8

7.
0

32
0

14
.0

12
.5

15
.6

31
6

16
.7

14
.9

18
.6

14
0

17
.1

14
.2

19
.9

85
14

.6
11

.7
18

.1
19

87
-1

98
9

10
8

6.
0

4.
9

7.
2

30
0

13
.0

11
.5

14
.4

28
3

14
.9

13
.2

16
.7

13
7

16
.5

13
.8

19
.3

81
13

.6
10

.8
16

.9
19

88
-1

99
0

10
0

5.
7

4.
6

6.
8

30
4

13
.0

11
.5

14
.4

26
3

13
.8

12
.1

15
.5

13
6

16
.3

13
.5

19
.0

80
13

.2
10

.4
16

.4
19

89
-1

99
1

10
6

6.
1

5.
0

7.
3

29
5

12
.5

11
.1

13
.9

28
6

14
.9

13
.2

16
.7

12
5

14
.8

12
.2

17
.4

69
11

.2
8.

7
14

.1
19

90
-1

99
2

11
7

6.
9

5.
6

8.
1

35
6

15
.1

13
.5

16
.6

29
8

15
.4

13
.7

17
.2

11
9

14
.0

11
.5

16
.5

74
11

.8
9.

3
14

.8
19

91
-1

99
3

13
2

7.
8

6.
5

9.
2

35
1

14
.9

13
.3

16
.4

30
0

15
.3

13
.6

17
.0

10
6

12
.4

10
.0

14
.7

68
10

.8
8.

4
13

.7
19

92
-1

99
4

13
0

7.
8

6.
5

9.
2

36
8

15
.6

14
.0

17
.2

28
6

14
.4

12
.7

16
.0

10
2

11
.8

9.
5

14
.1

71
11

.2
8.

8
14

.1
19

93
-1

99
5

13
0

7.
9

6.
5

9.
3

38
3

16
.3

14
.6

17
.9

25
9

12
.8

11
.3

14
.4

96
11

.2
9.

0
13

.6
69

10
.8

8.
4

13
.6

19
94

-1
99

6
12

9
7.

9
6.

5
9.

3
40

4
17

.1
15

.5
18

.8
23

4
11

.5
10

.0
12

.9
87

10
.2

8.
2

12
.6

74
11

.3
8.

9
14

.2
19

95
-1

99
7

13
6

8.
4

7.
0

9.
8

40
7

17
.2

15
.5

18
.9

21
5

10
.4

9.
0

11
.8

68
8.

1
6.

3
10

.3
70

10
.4

8.
1

13
.2

19
96

-1
99

8
14

4
8.

9
7.

5
10

.4
37

4
15

.8
14

.2
17

.4
23

1
11

.1
9.

7
12

.5
67

8.
1

6.
3

10
.3

72
10

.5
8.

2
13

.2
19

97
-1

99
9

14
4

8.
9

7.
5

10
.4

40
4

17
.1

15
.4

18
.8

24
1

11
.4

10
.0

12
.9

75
9.

2
7.

3
11

.6
76

10
.9

8.
6

13
.6

19
98

-2
00

0
14

7
9.

1
7.

6
10

.5
41

1
17

.5
15

.8
19

.1
25

7
12

.1
10

.6
13

.5
82

10
.2

8.
1

12
.7

75
10

.6
8.

3
13

.3
19

99
-2

00
1

13
5

8.
2

6.
8

9.
6

42
2

18
.0

16
.3

19
.8

25
9

12
.0

10
.6

13
.5

79
9.

9
7.

8
12

.4
70

9.
8

7.
6

12
.4

20
00

-2
00

2
12

7
7.

6
6.

3
9.

0
40

6
17

.4
15

.7
19

.1
26

8
12

.3
10

.8
13

.8
68

8.
6

6.
6

10
.8

68
9.

4
7.

3
11

.9
20

01
-2

00
3

13
8

8.
2

6.
8

9.
6

41
0

17
.7

16
.0

19
.4

27
9

12
.7

11
.2

14
.1

63
7.

9
6.

1
10

.1
61

8.
4

6.
4

10
.7

20
02

-2
00

4
13

5
7.

9
6.

6
9.

2
40

4
17

.5
15

.8
19

.2
29

3
13

.1
11

.6
14

.6
69

8.
6

6.
7

10
.9

68
9.

3
7.

2
11

.7
20

03
-2

00
5

12
4

7.
2

5.
9

8.
4

37
1

16
.1

14
.4

17
.7

30
6

13
.5

12
.0

15
.1

69
8.

5
6.

6
10

.8
64

8.
7

6.
7

11
.1

20
04

-2
00

6
92

5.
3

4.
3

6.
5

34
5

14
.9

13
.3

16
.5

31
6

13
.8

12
.3

15
.3

78
9.

6
7.

6
11

.9
69

9.
3

7.
2

11
.7

20
05

-2
00

7
79

4.
5

3.
6

5.
6

33
8

14
.6

13
.0

16
.2

29
9

12
.9

11
.4

14
.4

74
9.

0
7.

1
11

.3
70

9.
3

7.
3

11
.8

20
06

-2
00

8
87

4.
9

4.
0

6.
1

34
5

14
.9

13
.3

16
.5

28
4

12
.1

10
.7

13
.5

74
8.

9
7.

0
11

.1
67

8.
8

6.
9

11
.2

20
07

-2
00

9
87

4.
9

3.
9

6.
1

33
4

14
.5

12
.9

16
.0

25
4

10
.7

9.
4

12
.0

71
8.

3
6.

5
10

.5
69

9.
0

7.
0

11
.4

20
08

-2
01

0
89

5.
0

4.
0

6.
2

31
1

13
.5

12
.0

15
.0

27
7

11
.5

10
.2

12
.9

63
7.

2
5.

6
9.

2
73

9.
5

7.
4

11
.9

20
09

-2
01

1
95

5.
4

4.
4

6.
6

33
1

14
.5

13
.0

16
.1

31
9

13
.2

11
.7

14
.6

68
7.

6
5.

9
9.

7
74

9.
5

7.
4

11
.9

20
10

-2
01

2
94

5.
3

4.
3

6.
5

35
8

15
.8

14
.2

17
.5

35
6

14
.6

13
.1

16
.1

70
7.

6
5.

9
9.

6
85

10
.7

8.
6

13
.3

20
11

-2
01

3
10

7
6.

1
5.

0
7.

3
39

6
17

.7
15

.9
19

.4
39

9
16

.4
14

.8
18

.0
86

9.
0

7.
2

11
.2

80
10

.0
7.

9
12

.4
20

12
-2

01
4

85
4.

9
3.

9
6.

1
36

0
16

.2
14

.5
17

.8
36

0
14

.8
13

.3
16

.3
92

9.
3

7.
5

11
.4

77
9.

4
7.

5
11

.8
20

13
-2

01
5

89
5.

2
4.

2
6.

4
36

0
16

.2
14

.6
17

.9
37

2
15

.2
13

.7
16

.8
95

9.
4

7.
6

11
.5

74
9.

0
7.

0
11

.2
20

14
-2

01
6

98
5.

8
4.

7
7.

0
33

6
15

.2
13

.5
16

.8
32

8
13

.4
11

.9
14

.8
95

9.
2

7.
4

11
.2

62
7.

4
5.

7
9.

5
20

15
-2

01
7

12
2

7.
3

6.
0

8.
5

37
0

16
.7

15
.0

18
.4

37
9

15
.4

13
.8

16
.9

92
8.

7
7.

0
10

.7
69

8.
1

6.
3

10
.3

6 
Fi

gu
re

s 
ar

e 
fo

r d
ea

th
s 

re
gi

st
er

ed
, r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
de

at
hs

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
in

 e
ac

h 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r. 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

it 
ta

ke
s 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

a 
co

ro
ne

r’s
 in

qu
es

t, 
it 

ca
n 

ta
ke

 m
on

th
s 

or
 e

ve
n 

ye
ar

s 
fo

r a
 s

ui
ci

de
 to

 b
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
. M

or
e 

de
ta

ils
 c

an
 b

e 
fo

un
d 

in
 th

e 
'S

ui
ci

de
s 

in
 th

e 
U

K'
 b

ul
le

tin
:

w
w

w
.o

ns
.g

ov
.u

k/
pe

op
le

po
pu

la
tio

na
nd

co
m

m
un

ity
/b

irt
hs

de
at

hs
an

dm
ar

ria
ge

s/
de

at
hs

/b
ul

le
tin

s/
su

ic
id

es
in

th
eu

ni
te

dk
in

gd
om

/p
re

vi
ou

sR
el

ea
se

s

S
ou

rc
e:

 O
ffi

ce
 fo

r N
at

io
na

l S
ta

tis
tic

s

Fo
ot

no
te

s
1  T

he
 N

at
io

na
l S

ta
tis

tic
s 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f s

ui
ci

de
 is

 g
iv

en
 in

 th
e 

'G
ui

da
nc

e'
 ta

b.
2  F

ig
ur

es
 a

re
 fo

r p
er

so
ns

 a
ge

d 
10

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 o

ve
r.

3 
Ag

e-
sp

ec
ifi

c 
su

ic
id

e 
ra

te
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
4  T

he
 lo

w
er

 a
nd

 u
pp

er
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 li
m

its
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 T

he
se

 fo
rm

 a
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
te

rv
al

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 s
ta

tis
tic

al
 p

re
ci

si
on

 o
f a

n 
es

tim
at

e 
an

d 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 fi
gu

re
. C

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

sm
al

l n
um

be
rs

 o
f e

ve
nt

s 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ra

nd
om

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
ns

. A
s 

a 
ge

ne
ra

l r
ul

e,
 if

 th
e 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

te
rv

al
 a

ro
un

d 
on

e 
fig

ur
e 

ov
er

la
ps

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
te

rv
al

 a
ro

un
d 

an
ot

he
r, 

w
e 

ca
nn

ot
 s

ay
 w

ith
 c

er
ta

in
ty

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 m
or

e 
th

an
 a

 c
ha

nc
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
tw

o 
fig

ur
es

.
5  D

ea
th

s 
of

 n
on

-re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
.

75
 a

nd
 o

ve
r

Ba
ck

 to
 c

on
te

nt
s 

pa
ge

10
–2

4
25

–4
4

45
–6

4
65

–7
4

Tudalen y pecyn 29

http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases
http://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/suicidesintheunitedkingdom/previousReleases


 

Amdan Mind Cymru 
Ni yw Mind Cymru. Dylai neb wynebu problem iechyd meddwl ar ei hunain. 
Rydym yn darparu cyngor a chefnogaeth i helpu unrhywun sy’n wynebu 
problem iechyd meddwl. Rydym yn ymgyrchu ar gyfer gwasanaethau gwell, 
codi ymwybyddiaeth ac i hyrwyddo dealltwriaeth. 

Yn ystod haf 2019, lansiwyd ein canfyddiadau am ddatblygu dull 
gweithredu trwy’r ysgol gyfan (a whole school approach) i iechyd meddwl, 
yn seiliedig ar waith peilot mewn ysgolion, yn cynnwys arolwg 3,000 o 
ddisgyblion. 

Mae’r gwaith wedi darganfod: 

 Medd 1 o bob 5 o ddisgyblion fod maen nhw wedi profi problem 
iechyd meddwl 

 Medd 1 o bob 3 o athrawon fod maen nhw wedi profi problem iechyd 
meddwl 

 Medd 1 o bob 4 o rieni fod maen nhw wedi profi problem iechyd 
meddwl  

 
Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol 

Ar hyn o bryd, rydyn ni’n cryfhau ein tystiolaeth ynglŷn â phobl ifanc yng 
Nghymru, yn blaenoriaethu lleisiau pobl ifanc, ond does dim digon gyda ni 
eto i gyflwyno cyngor arbennig. Er hynny, mae’r gwaith rydyn ni eisoes wedi 
gwneud gyda phobl ifanc yn helpu llunio cwestiynau i’r ymholiad.  

Yn ei llythyr hi at y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg ar 26 Mehefin, 2019, 
ysgrifennodd y Gweinidog Addysg: “Mae plant a phobl ifanc mewn 
lleoliadau EOTAS ymhlith rhai o'r dysgwyr sydd fwyaf agored i niwed. Maent 
yn aml yn dod o gefndiroedd helbulus ac anodd a gallant brofi tor-
perthynas o fewn y teulu a phroblemau iechyd meddwl yn fynych.” 

 
CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 3 
 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
Y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg  
Ymchwiliad i Addysg Heblaw yn yr 
Ysgol 
EOTAS 14 
Ymateb gan: Mind Cymru 
___________________________________ 
 

 
 
 
National Assembly for Wales  
Children, Young People and Education 
Committee  
Inquiry into Education Otherwise than at 
School EOTAS 14 
Response from: Mind Cymru 
_______________________________________ 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 

2 
 

Rydyn ni’n gyfarwydd gyda’r sefyllfa disgrifiwyd gan y Gweinidog, ac rydyn 
ni’n credu dylai’r pwyllgor ystyried y materion canlynol ynglŷn ag iechyd 
meddwl pobl ifanc ac Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol. 

1. Beth yw’r gefnogaeth iechyd meddwl ar gyfer pobl ifanc sy’n derbyn 
Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol a sut ydyn ni’n gallu sicrhau safon ac 
ansawdd cyson ar draws Gymru? 
 

2. Pa adnoddau ydy’r Llywodraeth Cymru, awdurdodau lleol neu consortia 
addysg rhanbarthol yn darparu er mwyn sicrhau cefnogaeth iechyd 
meddwl o safon i bobl ifanc sy’n derbyn Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol, a 
beth yw’r proses gwerthuso’r rhain? 

 
3. A oes ddatblygiad ar argymell Estyn ar Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol 

(Mehefin 2016) bod angen i’r Llywodraeth Cymru cryfhau canllawiau ar 
gyfer awdurdodau lleol i ‘[g]wella’r gallu i droi at Wasanaethau Iechyd 
Meddwl Plant a’r Glasoed (CAMHS) ac asiantaethau arbenigol eraill i 
ddisgyblion sy’n cael addysg heblaw yn yr ysgol? A oes tystiolaeth i hyn 
ymhen profiadau dyddiol y rhai sy’n derbyn Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol? 

 
4. A oes gwaith gan ysgolion cyffredinol ar draws Gymru i sicrhau mae 

ystyriaeth o’r anghenion iechyd meddwl pobl ifanc gyda risg o symud at 
Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol, ac os mae Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol yw’r 
gefnogaeth fwyaf priodol? 

 
5. Mae pryderon fod dysgwyr gyda phroblemau iechyd meddwl yn bosib yn 

cyrraedd dull dysgu tu allan o addysg cyffredinol oherwydd pwysau gan 
yr ysgol, sy’n rhan o broses fwy eang o’r enw ‘off-rolling’ (lle cafwyd y 
plentyn eu tynnu oddi ar gofrestr yr ysgol heb waharddiad ffurfiol, 
parhaol neu trwy annog rhieni symud y plentyn o’r ysgol). Ar hyn o bryd, 
rydyn ni’n aros ar gyfer adroddiad gan Estyn. A oes tystiolaeth bod hyn yn 
digwydd i ddysgwyr sy’n wynebu problemau iechyd meddwl tu fewn ein 
sefydliadau addysg, a thrwy hynny yn derbyn Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol, 
a oes ymdrech atal hyn rhag digwydd? 
 

6. Mae’r gwaith rydyn ni wedi gwneud gyda phobl ifanc wedi darganfod 
pryderon fod plant yn gallu cael eu labeli yn negyddol, megis ‘drwg’ neu 
‘yn anodd’ tra maen nhw’n wynebu problemau iechyd meddwl neu 
niwroddatblygiadol. Tu fewn yr ysgol, mae’r aelod o’r staff sy’n gyfrifol ar 
gyfer gofal bugeilio gall hefyd bod yn gyfrifol ar gyfer disgyblaeth, ac felly 
mae hyn yn gadael rhai plant yn hwyrfrydig gofyn am gefnogaeth gan 
rywun sydd eisoes, yn eu teimlad, yn labeli nhw mewn ffordd negyddol. 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 

3 
 

Mae hyn yn codi cwestiynau am y llwybrau tuag at Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr 
Ysgol, ac os mae’r dysgwyr wedi derbyn cefnogaeth briodol cyn y newid 
yn eu sefyllfa. Sut gall adnabod yr unigolion yma ac yn rhoi cefnogaeth 
addas iddyn nhw? 
 

7. Yn derbyn pwysigrwydd iechyd meddwl da mewn sicrhau canlyniadau 
da i’r dysgwyr, sut bydd Llywodraeth Cymru sicrhau plethiad gwell 
iechyd meddwl tu fewn y cwricwlwm newydd i’r rhai sydd yn derbyn 
Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol er mwyn sicrhau bod pob un person ifanc yn 
cyrraedd eu potensial? 
 

8. Sut dylai ‘dull gweithredu trwy’r ysgol gyfan’ edrych mewn darpariaeth 
Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol? 
 

9. Ydy adnoddau iechyd meddwl yn yr iaith Gymraeg yr un mor dda â’r rhai 
yn yr iaith Saesneg, gydag yr un argaeledd? Os nag ydyn, pa waith sy’n 
digwydd i sicrhau cydraddoldeb rhwng y ddwy iaith swyddogol? A oes 
enghreifftiau ar gael o ymarfer da yn defnyddio adnoddau iechyd 
meddwl iaith Gymraeg mewn cyd-destun Addysg Heblaw Yn Yr Ysgol? 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



Kirsty Williams AC/AM 
Y Gweinidog Addysg  
Minister for Education 

Vaughan Gething AM
Minister for Health and Social Services

 Vaughan Gething AC/AM 
 Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
 Minister for Health and Social Services 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre: 
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru 
  Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any correspondence received in Welsh will 
be answered in Welsh and corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Julie Morgan AC/AM 
Y Dirprwy Weinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol Deputy Minister for Health 
and Social Services 

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/KW/0547/20 

Lynne Neagle AM 
Chair of Children, Young People and Education (CYPE) Committee 

SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales 

28 February 2020 Dear Lynne, 

Thank you for your letter of 31 January enclosing a copy of the Committee’s report on the 
Scrutiny of the Welsh Government’s Draft Budget 2020-21.  

We would like to thank members of the Committee for their report. Please find enclosed the 
Welsh Government response in advance of the vote on the Final Budget on 3 March.  

Yours sincerely 

Kirsty Williams AM 
Minister for Education 

Vaughan Gething AM 
Minister for Health and Social Services 

Julie Morgan AM 
Deputy Minister for Health and Social Services 

CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur I'w nodi 1 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

Eitem 4.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Kirsty.Williams@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Kirsty.Williams@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales


1 

WELSH GOVERNMENT RESPONSE TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE REPORT: 
SCRUTINY OF THE WELSH GOVERNMENT DRAFT BUDGET 2020-21 

FEBRUARY 2020 

The Welsh Government Draft Budget 2020-21 was scrutinised by the Children 
Young People and Education (CYPE) Committee on 8 January.  Following on from 
those sessions, the Committee has completed a report containing 27 
recommendations.  This paper is the Welsh Government’s formal response to those 
recommendations.   

A CHILDREN’S RIGHTS APPROACH (SECTION 2) 

Recommendation 1. That the Welsh Government return to publishing an individual 
CRIA on its Draft Budget to evidence compliance with the Measure, until we can be 
reassured that the SIIA accompanying a Draft Budget demonstrates the duty of due 
regard to the UNCRC has been clearly taken into account. 

Response: Reject 
We have over recent years taken an integrated approach to impact assessments, 
which includes consideration of children’s rights. This reflects that we have a 
responsibility to consider our decisions through a number of lenses to understand 
their impact but does not devalue the importance we place upon Children’s rights. 

An integrated approach also enables us to better understand the impact of decisions 
overall recognising that people and places are multi-dimensional and the integrated 
approach seeks to capture multiple and cumulative impacts which reflect people’s 
lived experience and the reality of our economy, culture and environment.  

For example we have sought to consider children’s and young people’s rights, 
reflecting their protected characteristics under the Equality Act, as well as taking into 
account the impact of decisions and policies on social, economic, cultural and 
environmental well-being, as set out within the Well-being of Future Generations Act, 
which are integral to children and young people’s well-being. 

We recognise and remain committed to continuously developing our approach to 
assessing the impacts of strategic spending decisions. Our Budget Improvement 
Plan, published for the first time this year, includes planned improvements to 
assessing the impact of budget decisions which will include consideration of how we 
can improve our understanding of the impacts on Children’s Rights. 

It should also be acknowledged that assessment of impacts are a key element of our 
approach to policy making and are conducted as part of Welsh Government’s 
ongoing policy development and review. The current Integrated Impact Assessment 
(IIA) tool requires that children’s rights are considered and, as enshrined in Welsh 
law, the impact on children and young people must be considered whenever we use 
any of our powers to make a decision. 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



2 
 

It is the duty on Ministers is to have due regard to children’s rights, rather than to 
complete a CRIA. However, the CRIA process allows us to give structure to the 
consideration of the impact our proposals will have on children and their rights, at an 
early stage and throughout the development and implementation process. 
 
For the first time this year we have also published the evidence that individual 
Ministers have given to their own subject committees in one place containing over 
300 pages of evidence from Welsh Ministers in terms of how they have set their 
budget for this year, which includes consideration of Children’s Rights. 
 
HEALTH, SOCIAL CARE AND CHILDREN (SECTION 3) 
 

Recommendation 2. That the Welsh Government clarify how the cumulative funding 
allocations for perinatal mental health on page 28 of the Minister and Deputy Minister 
for Health and Social Services’ draft budget paper have been calculated and what 
their status is. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
The funding provided to perinatal mental health services has been provided in three 
stages. The initial investment into perinatal mental health services was made to all 
seven health boards and allocated on a formula basis; the second stage was via the 
transformation funds in 2018-19; and the third stage was service improvement 
funding in 2019-20.  
 
Funding made available to health boards through both the mental health 
transformation funds and service improvement funding was provided across a 
number of priority areas, including perinatal mental health. Health boards had the 
flexibility to consider their population needs and submitted proposals taking into 
account the current demand and capacity. 
 
This resulted in four health boards prioritising spend from the mental health 
transformation funds (Abertawe Bro-Morgannwg, Betsi Cadwaldr, Hywel Dda and 
Powys). Five health boards invested in perinatal mental health services from the 
service improvement funding (Cwm Taf Morgannwg, Aneurin Bevan, Powys, 
Swansea Bay and Hywel Dda). 
 
The funding included on page 28 of the draft budget paper is the amount included 
within the relevant health board allocation for delivery of perinatal mental health 
services.  
 
The impact of this funding will be monitored through the agreed arrangements for the 
Together for Mental Health delivery plan 2019-2022. We have made it clear through 
the award of the service improvement funding the expectation that this will include 
adherence to the All Wales Perinatal Mental Health Standards by March 2020 and 
the Royal College of Psychiatrist’s Perinatal Community Standards by March 2021. 
This expectation is the same for health boards who did not choose to allocate their 
money for this priority area and this has also been made clear to them.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



3 
 

Recommendation 3. That the Welsh Government announce its intentions in relation 
to specialist mother and baby unit provision in Wales by the end of the 2019-20 
financial year. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
We have written to the committee to confirm the arrangements for utilising the Tonna 
site in order to proceed with a six bedded Mother and Baby Unit, which is expected 
to be operational by spring 2021.  
 
In addition to this, WHSSC have been asked to undertake a further options appraisal 
to determine the appropriate model for a permanent Perinatal Mental Health Mother 
and Baby Unit. This work will consider whether continuing to use the refurbished unit 
at the Tonna Hospital site on a permanent basis, or developing a new build Mother 
and Baby Unit on the Neath Port Talbot site.  
 
We have committed to continue to provide written updates to the Committee on this 
issue, these updates will also include consideration of provision in North Wales.  
 

Recommendation 4. That the Welsh Government re-consider fundamentally its 
position in relation to monitoring and accountability arrangements for the funding of 
children and young people’s emotional and mental health services. This should be 
underpinned by a review of spending on these services (across the whole system) in 
order to improve clarity, transparency and the ability to measure impact effectively. 

 
Response: Reject 
 
We have previously stated it is not the intention to separate out funding for children 
and young people services from that of adult services as this would likely create an 
artificial divide between services. Health boards are responsible for meeting the 
health and well-being needs of their population. This includes detailed health needs 
assessments at a local level to inform funding decisions for health services – this is 
not something that can be planned at a national level. 
 
Where we have provided additional funding, for instance via Service Improvement 
Funding, funding is prioritised in line with priority areas identified at a national level 
which included support for children and young people, where we indicated our 
expectation that a significant amount of the allocation was utilised in this area. 
However health boards still must have the flexibility to utilise it in areas where they 
have most demand.  
 
These priority areas are included within the Together for Mental Health delivery plan 
2019-2022 and there will be regular updates available at both a health board and 
national level to provide transparency. In addition, a condition of additional funding 
also includes for proposals to be agreed via the Local Mental Health Partnership 
Boards to ensure actions are agreed with and joined up with local approaches. 
 
In terms of impact, we continue to scrutinise health boards on achieving access 
targets through routine performance meetings, for instance, Joint Executive Team 
(JET) meetings. Where we have provided additional funding directly to health boards 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



4 
 

through service improvement funding we have provided clear criteria for the funding 
and will monitor the achievement of outcomes set out in proposals through the 
delivery plan. Additional funding to health boards in 2020-21 will also be subject to 
similar criteria.  An example is the milestones set out in the pCAMHS improvement 
plans, in line with the NHS Delivery Unit’s assurance review. 
 
Lastly, the actual investment which will benefit the emotional health and well-being of 
children and young people is much broader than the specific mental health spend, 
but it’s not feasible to obtain a meaningful estimate of this across the total budget. 
 

Recommendation 5. That the Welsh Government provide an outline of the 
timescale(s) for the publication of the mental health data set and confirm that these 
are on track to be met. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
Within the Together for Mental Health delivery plan 2019-2022 we provide detail on 
our action to implement a nationally standardised mental health and 
learning disability core dataset including the roll out of the Welsh Community Care 
Informatics Service (WCCIS) computer system. This states the following: 
 
Year 1 (2020) 

 Assure dataset through Welsh Informatics Standards Board (WISB) 
processes. 

 Commence publication of both the new section 135/136 dataset and the 
psychological therapies 26 week target on Stats Wales. 

 To develop and implement a common set of forms for assessment, care and 
treatment planning, and reviews across health and social care teams. 

 To pilot outcomes focused model and develop process to roll out. 
 

Year 2 (2021) 

 Roll out Word versions of forms across services. 

 Improve the way data is shared with the public, making user friendly information 
available on the Stats Wales website. 

 
Year 3 (2022) 

 Roll out of dataset alongside WCCIS system across Wales. 

 Roll out outcomes focused model across Wales. 
 
We will provide updates as part of the Together for Mental Health delivery plan 
progress reports.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



5 
 

Recommendation 6. That the Welsh Government provide assurances that, if there 
is insufficient evidence for the roll out of traditional school counselling to primary 
schools:  
▪ the available resources will be used towards interventions proven to be effective in 
the primary school setting; and 
▪ the expert advice of the Joint Ministerial Task and Finish Group on the Whole-
School Approach will be sought in order to inform decisions about the use of this 
money. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
The committee’s Mind over Matter report called on the Welsh Government to 
consider providing counselling for those younger than 11 years old. Since then, both 
the Minister for Education and the Minister for Health and Social Services have 
stated their wish to extend the current school counselling scheme to children below 
the Yr6 threshold, as this is where stakeholders are telling us the greatest level of 
unmet need currently is, with younger children presenting with difficulties.  However, 
this is anecdotal evidence and we want to ensure that funding is targeted to have the 
greatest effect.  We therefore want to review the extent of unmet need both within 
younger age groups and to ensure that those currently eligible for school counselling 
are able to access it in an equitable and consistent manner, within acceptable 
timescales.  We also know that current one-to-one counselling provision is not 
necessarily appropriate for use with younger children and will want to explore what 
an appropriate delivery model should be.  Activity will also need to complement our 
work regarding the wider whole school approach to emotional and mental wellbeing 
and our plans to develop Framework Guidance for schools on this issue, together 
with supporting resources, including evidence based universal and targeted 
interventions (an area we are currently exploring with Public Health Wales).   
 
Our activity update paper provided to the last meeting of the Joint Ministerial Task 
and Finish Group on 27 January, noted the draft budget for the whole school work 
would increase to £5m in 2020-21 and the Ministers intention to target some of this 
funding towards extending school counselling provision.  The paper also sought the 
views of the group on future funding priorities. We will continue to keep the group 
informed and take their views on all whole school related activity, including funding 
priorities. 
 

Recommendation 7. That the Welsh Government work with local authorities to 
provide an outline of the estimated costs of implementing their bespoke reduction 
estimation plans safely, to reassure us of their affordability. 

 
Response: Reject 
 
The purpose of reduction expectation plans is to concentrate the minds of local 
authorities on the need to halt the year on year increases in numbers of looked after 
children in Wales. Local authorities acknowledge the increasing pressure high 
numbers of children in care is placing on services. Delivering reduction expectations 
is aimed at turning the tide and working together with our local government partners 
to help relieve the pressure and ensure resources are utilised in their most effective 
way. We have placed no requirement on local authorities to specifically cost their 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



6 
 

reduction expectation plans.  As autonomous and democratically accountable 
bodies, local authorities are statutorily responsible for managing their financial 
affairs.   
 
Expenditure on a variety of different services, such as “Personal social services - 
children and families”, are provided to Welsh Government from Local authorities 
annually and this information is available to all on the Welsh Government’s data 
dissemination website - StatsWales. 
 
Through our discussions with local authorities about the development of reduction 
expectation plans we have focussed on the need for local authorities having a better 
understanding of their children’s services business, including performance 
monitoring, evaluating improvement, modelling, and flow. Our primary purpose is to 
help re-balance the system and supporting families to care for their own children. 
Local authorities recognise the need to relieve pressure on children’s services and 
the effect this will have on budgets.  
 
Local authorities have been asked to consider adopting business principles to deliver 
improved outcomes in future planning for the looked after children population and 
service. This has been reflected in reduction expectation plans and local authorities 
are continuing to work on this as part of their peer support and learning. Reducing 
numbers of children in care and bringing children placed out of county and out of 
Wales back closer to home will help relieve pressure on budgets. These monies can 
then be reinvested to supporting improved outcomes for children in the care system 
and improved prevention. 
 

Recommendation 8. That the Welsh Government remain vigilant to the ethical 
issues that could arise as it explores with the Future Generations Commissioner’s 
office the use of Social Impact Bonds to reduce entry into care. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
We will shortly be looking at the different models of delivery that could be used to 
deliver this initiative and will be especially interested in the experiences of others 
who have implemented the model so that we can build in the necessary safeguards 
in Wales. We accept the recommendation made by the Committee and will be 
mindful of the ethical issues as we develop the most suitable model to implement for 
the pilot. 
 

Recommendation 9. That the Welsh Government provide a more detailed update 
on how emotional and mental health support―including support to prevent suicide 
― for looked after children specifically is being funded in 2020-21 and its impact 
monitored. 

 
Response: Accept in principle   
 
We recognise the importance of care experienced young people having access to 
appropriate emotional and mental health support. Work to help ensure that this 
support is available is an integral part of our Improving Outcomes for Children work 
programme.   

Tudalen y pecyn 39

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fstatswales.gov.wales%2FCatalogue%2FLocal-Government%2FFinance%2FRevenue%2FOutturn&data=02%7C01%7CNatalie.Avery%40gov.wales%7C0e633d09e3d0424c235108d7af070e67%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637170317143594716&sdata=F%2FywPtxCd2zbRQ3nPKeip3dsdKvyItTIFZrj0QJtemg%3D&reserved=0


7 
 

 
The Minister for Health and Social Services has committed an additional £500k per 
annum to tackle suicide and self-harm, as part of the Talk to Me 2 suicide prevention 
strategy. Looked after children are identified as a priority group in the strategy. This 
includes funding four new posts to drive forward this work and co-ordinate the 
multiple agencies with a role to play in this agenda. Whilst we are taking specific 
actions to prevent suicide and self-harm across Wales, it is important to view this 
work in the context of our broader approach to improve mental health services. In 
particular, our actions to improve crisis care and access to CAMHS.  
 
In our draft budget we announced an extra £20million for mental health and £500k 
for the Whole School Approach. Together with an extra £2million from the education 
budget, this will support mental health support for young people, including the 
extension of schools counselling. This is in additional to the £2.5m made available 
from HSS this year in relation to the Whole School Approach.  
 
The new Together for Mental Health Delivery Plan, published in January, reflects the 
high level of priority and the cross-Government working required to improve the 
mental health and well-being of our population, including all children and young 
people in Wales. The Delivery Plan includes a specific action (2.3 (iii)) for the NHS to 
ensure specialist mental health services meet the needs of young people and that 
services are equally accessible for those children and young people who are looked 
after or on the edge of care. 
 
The new Together for Children and Young People (T4CYP) Early Help and 
Enhanced Support Work Stream will work with Regional Partnerships Boards (RPBs) 
to build on the work of the Whole School Approach through the development of a 
whole system framework, which supports all children, young people and their 
families, and delivers proposals for best practice and service development. The 
continued £15m funding allocated to RPBs in 2020/21, via the Integrated Care Fund 
continues to be aimed at supporting therapeutic services for children already in the 
care system.   
 
Bodies which provide emotional and mental health support for children and young 
people are also part of the wider public sector who have a corporate parenting role in 
helping make sure that looked after children have the same care that every good 
parent would want for their children. Health partners have therefore played an 
important part in our recently re-established Task and Finish Group on Corporate 
Parenting.  Feedback from the Group has informed our proposals to update and 
extend our legislative and policy corporate parenting frameworks so they apply to a 
wider range of public bodies and to develop a voluntary charter. 
 
This programme of work will do much to strengthen, deepen and widen the existing 
arrangements so that looked after children and young people feel more supported by 
their public services, including health services. We will shortly be launching a wider 
corporate parenting consultation about the role of public and private bodies in 
supporting improved outcomes for looked after children. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



8 
 

 

Recommendation 10. That the Welsh Government develop improved ways of 
demonstrating that current investment choices as they relate to looked after children 
are effective. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
Investment decisions are made on the basis of evidence. The Committee is aware of 
the many and varied pieces of research which have informed funding decisions and 
policy choices, particularly in recent years. We know there are pressures in the 
system relating to the numbers of looked after children and those on the edge of 
care, the provision of emotional and mental health and wellbeing services and the 
application of family justice arrangements. 
 
All of the following reports provide a significant evidence base from which the 
Ministerial Advisory Group draws knowledge to shape and guide its current and 
future work: Cordis Bright  in 2013, the CYPE Committee’s Mind Over Matter in April 
2018, the Care Crisis Review  in June 2018, ADSS Cymru’s Innovative Funding 
Models to Meet Social Care Needs in January 2019, the Wales Centre for Public 
Policy’s Analysis of the Factors Contributing to the High Rates of Care in Wales  in 
March 2019, the Commission on Justice in Wales in October 2019, Born in to Care 
in October 2019 and the NSPCC Cymru and Voices from Care’s Listen, Act, Thrive 
in 2019.   
 
An important example of how research has informed investment decisions is the 
£15m Integrated Care Fund (ICF) directed by the Regional Partnership Boards to 
support services for children and young people at the edge of care including in 
relation to emotional and mental health and wellbeing. The Committee will be aware 
of the recently published ICF Annual Report (https://llyw.cymru/adroddiad-blynyddol-
cronfa-gofal-integredig-cymru-2018-i-2019 / https://gov.wales/wales-integrated-care-
fund-icf-annual-report-2018-2019) which provides more detail but some examples 
include:   

 In Cardiff, the Family Reunification Project has worked with 14 families and 
has resulted in 17 children being maintained in a family setting. 

 In Gwent, the Family Group Conferencing (FGC) Service has had 112 
referrals to date, with some 40 families completing the FGC. Positive 
feedback has been received from the families who received support 
confirming that their needs were met. 55% of children we diverted from care. 
Also within Gwent, 83% of young people using the Mediation Support 
Service were supported to remain living with their family and 17% of young 
people were supported into independent living. 

 In North Wales, the Domestic Abuse Intensive Worker supported 62 
families 319 children. 64% of families reported increased resilience and 
enhanced well- being. 

 In Powys, 63 families have been referred to its Children on the Edge of Care 
Project which has also resulted in a reduced number of children being put on 
the child protection register and following a referral to Edge of Care services, 
97% of children have remained at home. 

 In Western Bay, the Multi Agency Placement Support Service has worked 
with 64 children and foster carer households. Of these, 43 were allocated to a 

Tudalen y pecyn 41

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fllyw.cymru%2Fadroddiad-blynyddol-cronfa-gofal-integredig-cymru-2018-i-2019%2520%2F&data=02%7C01%7CHenry.Vaile%40gov.wales%7C9a4fd7a7e2dd42404ba808d7ae25acd8%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637169349140212021&sdata=2eIL8DiusLYjRzhvBYJ6U8KDs04udl1rje8%2BipOs9y0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fllyw.cymru%2Fadroddiad-blynyddol-cronfa-gofal-integredig-cymru-2018-i-2019%2520%2F&data=02%7C01%7CHenry.Vaile%40gov.wales%7C9a4fd7a7e2dd42404ba808d7ae25acd8%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637169349140212021&sdata=2eIL8DiusLYjRzhvBYJ6U8KDs04udl1rje8%2BipOs9y0%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fwales-integrated-care-fund-icf-annual-report-2018-2019&data=02%7C01%7CHenry.Vaile%40gov.wales%7C9a4fd7a7e2dd42404ba808d7ae25acd8%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637169349140212021&sdata=T%2FCv20tvYrk2YJCY7F5gCW1EHYdyJIf8Rx2T%2B0TadI8%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fwales-integrated-care-fund-icf-annual-report-2018-2019&data=02%7C01%7CHenry.Vaile%40gov.wales%7C9a4fd7a7e2dd42404ba808d7ae25acd8%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637169349140212021&sdata=T%2FCv20tvYrk2YJCY7F5gCW1EHYdyJIf8Rx2T%2B0TadI8%3D&reserved=0


9 
 

consultant social worker; 21 are receiving direct therapeutic support; 15 are 
receiving direct intervention from a psychologist; and 25 are receiving support 
from the family/education workers (which includes direct support to schools 
 

Recommendation 11. That the Welsh Government provide:  
 
(a) a more comprehensive outline of the outcomes expected of the investment in  
Play Wales and Young Wales and how this is monitored; and  
 
(b) reassurances about how the impact of not funding services previously provided 
via the Sustainable Services Third Sector Grant (e.g. in the case of Adoption UK 
Cymru) have been measured and will be mitigated. 

 
Response: Accept  

 
(a) Play Wales 
Following the Minister for Health and Social Service’s appearance at Committee, he 
wrote to you with more information regarding the funding we provide to Play Wales 
and our expectations. The funding provided to Play Wales specifically enables them 
to deliver against four core objectives which are critical to the delivery of high quality 
play experiences:  
 

 inform the development of policy and matters related to children's play in Wales 

 promote the value of children's play in Wales 

 provide specialist knowledge and advice regarding children's play 

 contribute to the professional development of the play and playwork workforce in 
Wales 
 

Play Wales deliver a number of outcomes against these objectives.  In addition to 
supporting play settings across Wales, increasing the provision of play opportunities 
and improving the training and qualifications of the play workforce, Play Wales also 
undertake a number of strategic actions on our behalf.  They complete a review of 
the local authority led Play Sufficiency Assessments and the associated action plans, 
helping measure performance against statutory obligations.  They are a core 
member of the Ministerial Play Review and they are key to championing Wales and 
our commitment to play on an international platform. 
 
The Minister for Health and Social Services has previously supplied a copy of the 
grant letter for 2019-20.  A copy of the Play Wales Operational Plan for 2018-20 is 
available here: 
https://documents.hf.wales.gov.uk/id:A28695206/document/versions/published  
 
Background 
 
£360,000 has been allocated to Play Wales within the draft budget for 2020-21. As 
the first country in the world to enshrine the right to play in legislation, Wales is 
considered a world leader in this arena.  The funding provided to Play Wales enables 
them to support Welsh Government, local authorities and play organisations to plan 
and deliver better play opportunities for children’.  It also enables us to share our 

Tudalen y pecyn 42

https://documents.hf.wales.gov.uk/id:A28695206/document/versions/published


10 
 

experiences and learn from those of other countries given the international standing 
Play Wales holds.   
 
Objectives 
 
Impact and outcomes 

 Play Wales produce and publish an annual impact report which describes the 
outcomes and achievements for the year. The latest report for 2018-19 has been 
published and can be found at 
https://www.playwales.org.uk/eng/impactreport  

 In 2018-19 there were 93 Play Wales members, 135,000 website hits, 3,500 right 
to play storybooks distributed across Wales, 3,350 individuals or organisations 
registered for regular updates. Play Wales published 13 publications and 
delivered playwork qualifications to over 300 learners. 

 Play Wales reviewed the 22 2019 Local Authority Play Sufficiency Assessments 
and identified key themes for future work from these 

 Play Wales is a key stakeholder in the Ministerial Play Review launched in 
September 2019 and due to report at the end of 2020. They have been 
instrumental in facilitating key organisations and independent academics input 
into the review. 

 Research commissioned by Play Wales to explore what has happened as a 
result of the commencement of the Play Sufficiency Duty in 2012 is informing the 
Play Review. 

 Play Wales facilitate quarterly Play Sufficiency network meetings across 3 
locations in Wales to raise key issues, provide support and encourage sharing 
good practice. 

 Play Wales Chair and provide the Secretariat for the Playwork Education and 
Training Council Wales which provides the advice and guidance required on 
training and qualification in the playwork sector to Skills Active. 

 Work with Public Health Wales on the benefit of play to mental and physical 
health and well-being. 

 Developed and launched the Playful Childhoods campaign and website aimed at 
parents and professionals, providing practical ideas for play opportunities. 

 Involved in the discussions on the national 20mph speed limit debate. 

 Play Wales has received the PQASSO Level1 Quality Mark.  Play Wales have 
therefore successfully demonstrated qualities such as effective and responsible 
governance, robust financial control and building good relationships with other 
organisations. 

 
Grant arrangements 
 
The Welsh Government and Play Wales agree an operation plan for each year. The 
grant is paid quarterly following a review with Play Wales on progress towards 
objectives. 
 
Further information 
 
Signed grant offer letter for 2019-20 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 43

https://www.playwales.org.uk/eng/impactreport


11 
 

https://documents.hf.wales.gov.uk/id:A25749272/document/versions/published  
The grant offer letter for 2020-21 will be issued after the final budget is agreed. We 
do not expect any major differences to the grant offer letter for 2020-21. 
 
Outcomes from Young Wales 
 
The work of Young Wales supports the following key outcomes. It enables children 
and young people to:  

 understand and engage in influencing and developing policy and practice (Article 
12 of the UNCRC);  

 develop their knowledge and skills in engaging with and influencing policy makers 
and practitioners in accordance with the National Children and Young People’s 
National Participation Standards for Wales; and, 

 benefit from better policies and practice that have been informed by Children and 
Young People. 

 
Monitoring of Young Wales 
 

 Children in Wales are required to submit quarterly progress and expenditure 
reports to the Welsh Government. The work of Young Wales is included in these 
reports.  

 Officials hold quarterly meetings with the Chief Executive of Children in Wales 
and relevant staff. These meetings focus on progress against the agreed work 
plan and include scrutiny of expenditure 

 The Deputy Minister for Health and Social Services meets the Chief Executive 
and Chair of Children in Wales on a quarterly basis to discuss their work, 
including the work of Young Wales. 

 
(b) Sustainable Social Services Third Sector Grant 
 
The Sustainable Social Services Third Sector Grant 2020-23 is one element of the 
funding of over £80m available to support activity that supports the Welsh 
Government’s Social Care priorities. The Sustainable Social Services Third Sector 
Grant 2020-23 grant was significantly over subscribed and following agreement of 
£1.2m of additional funding in 2020-21 against the £7m initially available, a total of 
32 applications were approved for funding. 
 
The 32 projects funded through this grant will support carers, children and young 
people, people with physical or sensory disabilities, people with learning disabilities 
and older people. The applications that have been funded provided the strongest 
evidence of projects that will support the core priorities of government and deliver a 
distribution across service areas. 
 
Where specific activities that are funded through the 2019-20 Sustainable Social 
Services Third Sector Grant have not been successful in their applications for the 
2020-23 grant these activities have been considered on a case by case individual 
basis and where Ministers consider it necessary to the delivery of Social Care 
agenda alternative support has been identified.   
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 44

https://documents.hf.wales.gov.uk/id:A25749272/document/versions/published


12 
 

Recommendation 12. That the Welsh Government develop a refreshed child 
poverty strategy to give direction to the levers within its powers to reduce the impact 
of child poverty. This strategy should be developed in a way that enables future draft 
budgets to reflect clearly the allocations available to improve outcomes in this 
regard. 

 
Response: Reject 
 
The 2010 Children and Families (Wales) Measure placed a duty on Welsh Ministers 
to develop a Child Poverty Strategy for Wales. Our current Child Poverty Strategy, 
sets strategic objectives for improving the outcomes of low income households.  
 
In December last year we reviewed our current Child Poverty Strategy.   The 
objectives within it continue to reflect the levers available to Welsh Government to 
fulfil our statutory duty to tackle child poverty in Wales.  These objectives are based 
on what the evidence tells us about where we can have most impact in improving 
outcomes for low income families.  
  
We took the opportunity in December to publish an annex to the Child Poverty 
Progress report 2019.  This fact sheet provides details of Welsh Government 
programmes aimed at tackling poverty: https://gov.wales/child-poverty-strategy-
2019-progress-report 
 
The CYPE Committee states in its report that Wales has the highest rate of child 
poverty in the UK at 29 per cent.  This is incorrect.  The most recent HBAI data, 
produced by the Department for Work and Pensions and published in March 2019, 
shows that child poverty in England is higher than in Wales at 31 per cent. However, 
we recognise that a child poverty rate of 29 per cent is not acceptable.   
 
We are looking again at everything we are doing as a government – our activities, 
our policies and our priorities - to ensure that we do everything within our powers to 
support low income households. 
 
This review is already underway and will look at what more Welsh Government can 
do to reduce costs for families, boost incomes and ensure the investment in 
programmes and services which contribute to tackling poverty is, as far as possible, 
improving outcomes for children and young people, both in the short and long term. 
The findings of the review will help to inform the activity of government going 
forward.  A final report outlining the findings and conclusions of the review, along 
with recommendations for a future programme of activity, is due to go to Ministers in 
March 2020. 
 
The Committee will be aware that poverty has been made a priority in the budget 
planning process for 2020-21.  This has ensured that additional funding is targeted at 
those programmes which have a track record of making a difference to the lives of 
children living in poverty.   
 
Welsh Government is investing nearly £1bn in a wide range of measures which help 
to improve outcomes for low income households in Wales. We have allocated 
additional funding of more than £19m in the draft budget for 2020-21 in a package of 

Tudalen y pecyn 45

https://gov.wales/child-poverty-strategy-2019-progress-report
https://gov.wales/child-poverty-strategy-2019-progress-report


13 
 

measures specifically targeted to help some of the most vulnerable people in our 
communities. This additional funding will support initiatives that keep money in 
people's pockets and services that support disadvantaged individuals and families.   
 
The review of our programs will help to inform how we prioritise our funding to 
support programmes going forward.  
 
 
 
EDUCATION RECOMMENDATIONS (SECTION 4) 
 

Recommendation 13. That the Welsh Government provide annual statements to 
the Assembly demonstrating the evidence that satisfied Welsh Ministers that local 
government is prioritising school funding, and how this is being monitored. 

 
Response: Reject  
 
Local Authority spending on schools is the responsibility of elected local authorities; 
it is funded through a mix of council tax, other Council resources, Welsh Government 
grant and re-distributed non-domestic rates.  The level of spending is influenced by a 
range of national and local factors including responding to local choices on how the 
service is provided. While it would not be right to imply that Welsh Ministers should 
or could override individual local council decisions on its budget, the Welsh 
Government collects and publishes information on the expenditure of councils on 
schools services as part of a suite of information on local authority funding, 
budgeting and spending and schools spending and reserves.   
 
Local Authorities and schools are subject to a regulatory and an inspection 
framework to ensure that they are meeting their statutory duties.  While this does not 
extend to controls on the level of funding of schools, which is the responsibility of the 
local authority, the Welsh Government discusses the overall level of local authority 
funding, and the funding of schools education, regularly and frequently through the 
Local Government elected representation on the Finance Sub Group of the 
Partnership Council.  The Finance Sub Group specifically discussed schools funding 
as part of our annual discussions on the budget, as well as overall funding from 
Welsh Government through both un-hypothecated and specific grant funding, so that 
the pressures on local authorities across a range of services including schools can 
be evidenced.  The minutes for this group are published on the Welsh Government 
website.  The un-hypothecated funding for local government for 2020-2021 
increased by £184m on a like for like basis over this financial year reflecting the 
identified pressures arising from teachers’ pay and pensions costs in particular, 
which are the most significant element of local authority schools expenditure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



14 
 

Recommendation 14. That the Welsh Government commit to prioritising funding for 
education in 2020-21 from any Barnett consequential received from the UK 
Government which is attributable to increases in education spending in England. 

 
Response: Reject  
 
It is an important principle of devolution that the funding Wales receives as a result of 
spending measures announced in England is not ring-fenced for specific purposes. 
Based on established practice, decisions about how any new funding is allocated is 
determined by Cabinet as part of the Budget planning process in line with Welsh 
Government’s strategic priorities. Individual Ministers subsequently make decisions 
on how budgets are allocated within their portfolio. 
  
In protecting this important principle we recognise the spirit of the recommendation 
to prioritise spending on education. Providing local government with the best 
possible settlement, which provides local authorities core funding for education, has 
been central to our budget preparations for 2020-21. The additions to the local 
government settlement and other new funding for schools and social care total over 
£220m in 2020-21, which is more than the Barnett consequential received from the 
UK Government Spending Round in relation to the schools (c£150m) and social care 
(c£59m) funding in England. We have also prioritised funding for education within the 
Education MEG with a resource increase of £57.8m, taking the budget to £1.567bn 
for 2020-21. 
 
Our settlement for 2020-21 may change again following the UK Budget scheduled 
for 11 March. The funding implications for our Budget beyond 2020-21 will be 
determined as part of the next UK Government Comprehensive Spending Review 
which is planned for later this year.   
 

Recommendation 15. That the Welsh Government provide a summary of the steps 
it is taking to refine projected future ALN costs and how it is assuring itself and the 
sector that they are costed and affordable. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
The costs associated with the Additional Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal 
(Wales) Act 2018 (the Act) and the wider Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 
Transformation Programme are set out in the regulatory impact assessment (RIA) 
that accompanied the Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) 
Bill. The RIA was subject to scrutiny by the Assembly and its conclusions were 
subsequently endorsed by the Assembly’s passing of the financial resolution relating 
to the Bill.  
 
Most of the costs relating to the existing systems relate to the making of provision to 
meet needs. The Act and the ALN Code do not increase need, nor do they require 
increased provision to be made.  
 
The administrative costs associated with the transition from the existing systems to 
the new one are intended to be covered by the £20m of extra money we are 
investing to facilitate our ALN transformation programme.  

Tudalen y pecyn 47



15 
 

 
There will be explanatory memoranda, including RIAs, published alongside the ALN 
Code and regulations to be made under the Act that will examine any specific 
funding implications. 
 
In response to concerns that have been expressed by the sector, we have recently 
started dialogue with Directors of Education, Further Education, and ALN 
Transformation Leads. 
 
 

Recommendation 16. That, as called for in our response to the consultation on the 
Draft ALN Code, the Welsh Government make a clear statement that:  
 
▪ local authorities and schools must continue to fulfil their responsibilities under the 
existing system; and 
   
▪ there must be no lessening of the threshold applied to identifying ALN under the 
new system, on cost grounds. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
In the lead-in to the implementation of the ALN system, local authorities, health 
boards and schools must ensure that they are meeting the needs of children and 
young people with special educational needs, in line with their existing statutory 
obligations. The Minister for Education has written to local authorities, health boards 
and schools to re-emphasise this point. 
 
The new ALN system will not affect the threshold for additional learning support on 
any grounds.  Rather, it will help ensure that all children and young people who 
require additional support to meet their needs, have that support properly planned for 
and protected.  It will ensure that all learners reach their potential through an 
inclusive, person-centred approach to education that enables all learners to thrive 
regardless of their ability. 
 
 

Recommendation 17. That the Welsh Government confirm:  
 
▪ how much Barnett consequential funding for 2020-21 it has received from the UK 
Government which is attributable to increases in Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) spending in England; and   
   
▪ how this is demonstrated in the 2020-21 Education MEG and the Housing and 
Local Government MEG (Local Government Settlement) respectively. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
At Spending Reviews we only receive consequentials as a result of the net change 
to each UK government’s department’s overall DEL budget. So it is not generally 
possible to link our Barnett changes to individual policy announcements. A key 
consideration as well is that our overall net position includes reductions as well as 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



16 
 

increases. The 2019 Spending Round included an announced £700m increase in 
support for children and young people with special educational needs in England 
between 2019-20 and 2020-21. Taking this measure on its own suggests that Wales 
received consequential funding of £41m in 2020-21. However, the Spending Round 
settlement for Wales included negative consequentials as well as positive ones. In 
particular it included a negative adjustment for an increase in the level of spending in 
England funded by non-domestic rates. This makes it very difficult to assign parts of 
the overall settlement to individual announcements in England.   
 
The local government settlement, through the Housing and Local Government MEG, 
provides the core funding to schools to support children with ALN. As outlined under 
recommendation 14, the additions to the local government settlement and other new 
funding for schools and social care total over £220m in 2020-21 - this is more than 
we received in the Spending Round in relation to the schools element of the 
consequential (c£150m of £196m) and social care (c£59m) funding in England. Of 
the £220m, the Education MEG has invested £8m in 2020-21 to help alleviate 
budget pressures associated with learners with a higher level of needs.   
 

Recommendation 18. That the Welsh Government revert to determining schools’ 
PDG allocations according to the latest data on their eFSM headcount, where this is 
higher than the January 2016 figures which have been used in recent years. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
We fully recognise how important the PDG is to schools and want to be satisfied that 
we are proceeding on the basis of the most effective and fairest model, ensuring 
schools receive the optimum allocation in the funding envelope available.   
 
For 2020-21 we are looking at a number of options, taking into account the 
uncertainty surrounding Universal Credit rollout and Transitional Protection for PDG. 
We are still working on these options internally with our statisticians and local 
government colleagues and we will make an announcement in due course on 
allocations.  
 

Recommendation 19. That the Welsh Government keep levels of all aspects of 
relevant funding to support curriculum reform under review―whether teachers’ 
professional learning, curriculum design or qualifications reform―to ensure that they 
are adequate to deliver and support the effective implementation of the new 
curriculum.  

 
Response: Accept  
 
The RIA for the curriculum bill will be published in due course and will set out the 
costs associated with curriculum reform.  However, the Welsh Government accepts 
that curriculum reform is complex and that the areas highlighted – professional 
learning, curriculum design and qualifications reform - need to be kept under review 
to ensure they are adequately supported and effectively implemented.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



17 
 

Recommendation 20. That the Welsh Government provide an update on detailed 
allocations within the Post-16 Education Action once they have been agreed and 
finalised. 

 
Response: Accept 
 

 
Funded Programme Description 

2020-21   
£000 

Investing In Quality 591 

FE Gov & HE Strat 60 

Learning and Work Institute 450 

Community Learning 4,913 

Further Education 350,837 

Sixth Forms 95,722 

Personal Learning Accounts 2,000 

JISC 1,591 

Erasmus 220 

Seren Network 1,942 

Mental Health 2,000 

Total 460,326 

 
 
The table above provides a breakdown of the Further Education Provision BEL 
(Post-16 Education Action).  These figures are subject to minor amendments 
throughout the year as result of potential reclaim activity and transfers which are not 
fully known at this point. 
 

Recommendation 21. That the Welsh Government publish updated indicative 
Diamond Dividend projections that show both the projected total size of the Dividend 
and the projected amount becoming available each year during continued 
implementation. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
The proposed forecast funding allocation for Higher Education Funding Council for 
Wales (HEFCW) is included in the table below. 
 

 
At the current time it is not possible to accurately forecast the amount of additional 
funding that will become available from the Welsh Government response to 
Diamond. The indicative funding levels for the next two financial years takes into 
account projected assumptions on a large number of factors impacting any year’s 

2021-22 2022-23

HEFCW funding allocation £179m £190m

Source: Higher Education Division

Tudalen y pecyn 50



18 
 

budget. Whilst the variants centre on the amount of support that will be available for 
student support, the individual amounts can vary significantly depending on factors 
such as students entering the system, rates of inflation, other OBR variables 
including inflationary increases of support and household income, which in turn 
impacts on grant/loan balance of maintenance support along with repayment 
amounts.  
 
These figures are based on forecasts from our student support forecasting models, 
using data available at the time. We currently only have a draft revenue budget for 
2020-21, the period for which we have a funding settlement from the UK 
Government. There are no published budgets beyond 2020-21, therefore any 
proposed funding beyond 2020-21 will be dependent upon available budgets and will 
need to be prioritised within the Education MEG once indicative allocations are 
available. Additionally, any funding beyond 2020-21 will be need to be considered 
within the context of the Comprehensive Spending Review. 
 

Recommendation 22. That the Welsh Government set out what the costs to the 
public purse would be during this Assembly Term if the Diamond maintenance grants 
were to be increased in line with inflation rather than increasing the maintenance 
loan. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
The following table shows the baseline costs of Diamond maintenance grants (full-
time and part-time undergraduate and postgraduate Masters contribution grant). The 
maintenance grant amounts and thresholds are currently flat-lined until 2020-21 
(2022-23 for the postgraduate Masters contribution grant), increasing with inflation 
thereafter. The second line of the table shows the increase in cost if inflation was to 
be applied from 2020-21 onwards, across all products. This would result in a £6m 
increase for 2020-21, rising to £8.7m in 2021-22 and 2022-23 and £9.2m in 2023-24. 
 
These figures are based on forecasts from our student support forecasting models, 
using data available at the time. Forecasted costs for the maintenance grants are 
calculated using Welsh domiciled student numbers from the Higher Education 
Statistics Agency (HESA) and the expected average grants. The average grants are 
derived based on household residual income, provided on students’ application 
forms to the Student Loans Company (SLC). 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



19 
 

 
 

Recommendation 23. That the Welsh Government set out why the full £12 million 
transfer needed to meet its degree level apprenticeship commitment is not included 
in its Draft Budget 2020-21 but will instead follow in a supplementary budget. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
Of the £12m commitment, £5m is already within HEFCW’s draft budget 
allocation.  Discussions were ongoing between two portfolio areas as to where the 
remainder of the £7m will be met from. Due to the timing of this, the additional £7m 
was not allocated in time for the publication of draft budget. It will be transferred as 
part of the in-year supplementary budget process for 2020-21 from the Economy and 
Transport MEG. 
 

Recommendation 24. That the Welsh Government outline:  
 
▪ the landscape as it relates to pensions in the higher education sector in terms of 
the powers and responsibilities of the Welsh and UK Governments and the role of 
higher education institutions themselves;  
 
▪ the steps it has taken to monitor the sector’s management of the risks to its 
sustainability created by pensions uncertainty;  
 
▪ its assessment of the potential impact of these risks to the sector and beyond; and 
 
▪ the action it has taken in cooperation with the UK Government on this matter. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
As higher education institutions are autonomous bodies, responsibility for financial 
and employment matters, including pensions, lies with the institutions themselves.  
As such, neither the Welsh Ministers nor HEFCW can play any formal role in what 
are UK wide negotiations.  Welsh Government officials will continue to work with 
HEFCW and Universities Wales to monitor the situation and any future negotiations 
that may occur. 
  

Forecasting the cost of Diamond maintenance grants(a)

Financial year costs

Overall 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

Baseline(b) £228.9m £271.2m £297.3m £314.8m £331.1m

Earlier inflationary increases(c) £228.9m £277.2m £306.1m £323.6m £340.3m

Difference £0.0m £6.0m £8.7m £8.7m £9.2m

Source: Higher Education Division

(b) Inflationary increases applied from 2021-22 onwards (2022-23 for PTUG)

(c) Inflationary increases applied from 2020-21 onwards

(a) Includes FTUG maintenance grant, PTUG maintenance grant and PG taught Masters 

contribution grant

Tudalen y pecyn 52



20 
 

HEFCW has produced a blog post and an explanatory note on why many HE 
institutions are showing financial deficits. HEFCW’s blog notes that the large deficits 
reported in the 2018/19 financial statements of many institutions in Wales do not 
reflect a significant problem in their operating performance, but are mainly due to 
one-off pension charges for costs to be paid in the future that have to be reflected as 
operating costs in financial statements.  
 
These pension charges impact on many UK HE institutions in 2018/19 and are not 
unique to Welsh institutions.  Although the cash payments for the pensions deficit 
reduction contributions will be spread over at least the next 10 years, the way these 
costs are required to be presented in financial statements (in HE institutions’ ‘income 
and expenditure’ accounts) means that the increase in the pension deficit provision 
is shown as a substantial operating cost in 2018/19. 
 
 
 

Recommendation 25. That the Welsh Government set out how it is assuring itself 
that: 
  
▪ higher education institutions are engaging in prudent and sustainable borrowing; 
and 
  
▪ governing bodies have the capability to scrutinise and oversee their commitments, 
and are doing that effectively. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
Institutions need to invest in their estates, facilities and infrastructure in order to 
remain competitive in the UK and global markets.  Borrowing is not, in itself, an issue 
provided the borrowing is to support investment, is aligned with institutions’ strategic 
priorities and is affordable. 
 
HEFCW has a Financial Management Code in place with the Governing Bodies of all 
regulated HE institutions in Wales that confirms the requirements for the organisation 
and management of their financial affairs.  The Code is there to ensure that 
regulated institutions are well run, have effective financial management 
arrangements and are sustainable for the future.  As the regulator in Wales, HEFCW 
monitors compliance with the Code and has measures in place for intervention 
where there is failure to comply.  These measures protect the interests of students, 
safeguard public funds and protect the reputation of higher education in Wales.  
  
In addition, in order to gain an approved annual fee and access plan, a regulated 
HEI in Wales is required to confirm that their institution is at a low risk of failure on 
financial grounds over the medium to long term. 
 
We are pleased that Chairs, Vice Chancellors, HEFCW and unions have been able 
to respond positively to Gillian Camm’s review. Our universities are important 
stewards of place and quality; accountable and transparent governance is essential 
to fulfilling this civic mission locally and nationally. We look forward to seeing the 
charter being taken forward. 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



21 
 

 
 

Recommendation 26. That the Welsh Government set out what analysis it―or 
HEFCW on its behalf―has undertaken on the sustainability of borrowing within the 
sector. 

 
Response: Accept 
 
Welsh HEIs continue to face a number of sector wide challenges, but based on 
current information HEFCW has advised that it does not see cause for concern in 
respect of short term financial crises.  
  
HEFCW, through its institutional risk management arrangements, maintains 
oversight of institutional borrowing and plays a role in monitoring any new borrowing.  
These arrangements enable universities’ governing bodies to assure themselves, 
and HEFCW, that they are not proposing to enter into financial commitments which 
put unmanageable pressure on the future financial sustainability of the university.  
Analysis undertaken by HEFCW of universities’ financial position is confidential; 
headline information from this analysis is shared with the Welsh Government on a 
confidential basis. 
 
Welsh HEIs continue to face a number of sector wide challenges, but based on 
current information from HEFCW, we do not believe there is cause for concern in 
respect of short term financial crises. The Welsh Government also made significant 
additional funds available to HEFCW in 2017-18 and 2018-19 to help mitigate the 
impact of these challenges.  
 

Recommendation 27. That the Welsh Government, in the next budget round, 
provide more detailed evidence of the strategic approach it has adopted to balancing 
HE and FE funding. 

 
Response: Accept  
 
Funding for higher education and further education comes from two sources in 
different measures. Higher education student funding is provided through a mix of 
loan provided by agreement between Welsh Government and HM Treasury and 
administered by the Student Loan Company (SLC) and Student Finance Wales 
(SFW). This is complemented by grant funding provided by the Welsh Government 
and again administered by the SLC and SFW. Further education is funded through 
grant funding to colleges based on student numbers on different programmes of 
learning and grants for students in specific circumstances. The regulation of these 
sources of funding is complex and is not fully interchangeable for learners of different 
ages and levels of study and as a consequence for different types of institution.  
 
The Augar review for the UK Government published in 2019 proposed a number of 
changes to the funding arrangements for post-compulsory education in England. To 
date the UK Government has not produced a formal response to this review, but it is 
expected that the review recommendations will be considered as part of the 
scheduled UK Government Comprehensive Spending Review. If changes are 

Tudalen y pecyn 54



22 
 

introduced as a consequence of these processes there may be implications for 
student funding and finance in Wales. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, and within the constraints of existing regulations and 
current programme for government commitments, the balance of funding between 
FE and HE will be considered as part of the 2021-22 budget preparations.  
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 55


	Agenda
	2 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol - sesiwn dystiolaeth 5
	CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 1 - Cymdeithas Cyfarwyddwyr Addysg Cymru a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru (Saesneg yn unig)

	3 Addysg Heblaw yn yr Ysgol - sesiwn dystiolaeth 6
	CYPE(5)-08-20 - Papur 3 - Mind Cymru

	4.1 Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar ein gwaith craffu ar gyllideb ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2020-21



